REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP5-43356-H01), ORGANIZATIONAL PLAN FOR NASA SAFETY CULTURE AND CLIMATE

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS #2 

(Please refer to Q&A # 1, Dated December 29, 2003 for additional information)

DATED:  January 8, 2004

1.  Please advise as to the EXACT location of the Standard Form 1449, and the Certifications and Representations Form.  Have you prepared a customized version of the SF 1449 for offerors to use or should offerors leave NASA portions of the form blank?
Additionally, your solicitation and previous Q&A stated that this acquisition is a full and open competition.  In reviewing Amendment 1, also posted on December 29, 2003 the first sentence in paragraph 3 reads as follows:

”The provisions and clauses in the RFP are those in effect through FAC 01-18.
The NAICS Code and the small business size standard for this procurement are
541990 and $5M.” 

If this is an unrestricted (full and open) competition, why are you advertising the NAICS Code and business size standard?
The solicitation states that the SF1449 is encouraged but not mandatory for your proposal cover page.  The Standard Form 1449 was previously located using an internet link.  We have since added a SF 1449 that has been partially completed with NASA information as an attachment that is posted with the solicitation.  Offerors should only complete their information on the SF 1449.

The Representations and Certifications that are required as part of any potential offeror's proposal include offeror fill-in requirements related to their business size/type.  NASA is required to track and report this type of information.  The NAICS Code and small business size standard have been provided to enable offerors to properly complete the Representations and Certifications.  The Representations and Certifications form was previously located using an internet link.  We have since added the form as an attachment that is posted with the solicitation.  Again, this competition is open to all business sizes/types.
2.  Both the original and amended solicitations include the following text:
 

"The Government may, after the initial evaluation, invite the most highly rated offerors for an oral presentation to further elaborate on their implementation plan and proposal.  If this happens, the oral presentations will take place no earlier than January 12, 2004 and no later than January 23, 2004 at NASA Headquarters."

 

Considering that the amended solicitation extended the response date to 14 January 2004, are the dates for oral presentations still valid?

No, the original dates are no longer valid.  Amendment 2 has modified the reference to oral presentation dates.  If needed, they are currently anticipated during late January. 

3.  Is there an incumbent contractor(s) for the existing NASA organization
development/cultural change initiatives (One NASA and Return to Flight)?  If so,

please identify them and specify whether the current RFP will need to

address the integration of those contractors into plans for the current

solicitation.  What other initiatives are underway?

Culture change is inherent in several existing contracts as tasks/subtasks.  These activities are generally smaller in scale and focus on organizational culture in general, rather than safety culture.  As stated in the RFP, the proposed plan should “provide for a systematic, integrated, NASA-wide approach”, so the expectation is that the successful offeror(s) will need to ultimately integrate existing work into their implementation plan.  Relevant initiative information (Return to Flight, OneNASA) has been provided in the RFP.  Upon award, information about relevant, existing contractors will be provided.

4.  Will NASA be responsible for the production aspects of the project (conference rooms, hotels, flights, required material, etc.)? Or should the offeror include these costs in the proposal? Does NASA presume any briefings or presentations to NASA staff are included (for costing purposes) in the implementation plan deliverable?
These issues will be identified as tasks are issued.  The implementation plan deliverable shall include a presentation at NASA Headquarters and hotels, flights, and other travel related costs should be included in the representative task cost plan.  The specific proposal instructions require the offeror to provide a detailed cost plan that includes travel (showing how many trips likely would be made to which specific locations and the associated costs), supplies, and other relevant categories.  Amendment 2 adds the presentation to the representative task SOW to provide clarification of this issue.

5.  Do you have any schedule information, such as contract award and project start dates?

Contract award/start is anticipated in February.  

6.  Are there any preferences on the format of the proposal? If yes, what are your preferences and do you have a template that you would like us to use?  

Proposal requirements have already been specified in the solicitation.  There are no additional preferences/templates.

7.  Is there a requirement to submit a Management Plan, list of key personnel, and resumes?  If so, is this included in the 20 page limitation?  Does the 20 page limit include/exclude company background documents -- client work histories and experience?  Does the 20 page limit include/exclude staff resumes?  May curriculum vitae (CV) and/or resumes be attached as an appendix NOT subject to the page limit?  Are there any restrictions/page limits applied to staff resumes and company background documents?  Does the 20 page limit apply to details regarding software technology included as options to proposals, so if we want to bid optional solutions should we put them in an attachment in our proposal response or in the main body of the proposal? 

Proposal requirements and page limitations/exclusions have already been specified in the solicitation.  A management plan, resumes, software technology details, etc., have not been specified, however, an offeror could choose to submit this type of information as part of the proposal.  This information would be included within the page limits.

8.  Are proposals expected to include “details” on implementing the planned change effort?  What “exactly” is needed and expected in the 5 page Representative Task Section?  Is this to focus on the detailed plan for first 6 months?

a) Is the period of performance 30 days to do an implementation plan
for the first 6 months, and hence the implementation plan is the only

deliverable; or

b) Is the period of performance 6 months to develop and execute the

implementation plan, hence the implementation plan is just the first

deliverable during the 6 month task period?

Proposal instructions are provided in the solicitation.  The first option above (a) is accurate.  A subsequent task may be issued to actually implement the plan by the 6th month of contract performance.  Amendment 2 modifies the Statement of Work for the representative task to provide further clarification.  The SOW for the representative task requires delivery of implementation plan within 30 days.  The implementation plan includes a discussion of the first three actions to be taken in order to accomplish plan as well as the resources and general labor requirements for those three actions.  

9.  Do elements in your definition of safety culture include any of the
eight OneNASA recommendations? 

There are no further definitions.

10.  Does the 12-point font requirement apply to graphics included in the
proposal? 

Yes, it does apply.

11.  If the RFP states that the culture transformation should not exceed 36 months, why are you seeking a pricing matrix over 5 years?
A five year period will maximize flexibility and support the potential need for follow-on tasks beyond the initial 36 month period.

12.  Are the Representations and Certifications excluded from 20 page limitation?

Yes, as noted in the solicitation.

13.  Are subcontractors and consultants required to submit representations and
certifications?

No

14.  Can you tell us who is the NASA executive sponsor of this culture
change effort?   Will the culture change team(s) report to this

individual?

Executive management of the Agency.

15.  The NASA office of Human resources has established a team to address
the development of an agency-wide leadership and management development

program.  Can you provide a brief status and schedule of that effort.

The team, through a series of benchmarking activities and meetings, is expecting to complete the development of a Leadership and Management Career Development Strategy by summer, 2004.

16.  Please define the reach of the term 'near-site' contractors.
Specifically, how far into the design and supply chain does this project go?  

For instance, how far into the major contractor organizations will it penetrate?  

What is the expected penetration into smaller contractors and suppliers?

Initial focus of this procurement will be on the civil service workforce.  Later tasks will specify more detail on the applicability of contractor involvement.

17.  Does NASA envision a site-based implementation team/ sponsor for the
safety culture change project similar to the approach being used for the

ONE NASA initiative?

NASA’s requirements are stated in the solicitation.  Beyond the stated requirements, NASA is open and flexible to any offeror’s proposed implementation strategy.

18.  Assuming that consultant personnel working on the safety culture
change initiative will be ‘badged’ and afforded general unescorted

access to the as-needed areas of the appropriate NASA facilities, what

are the requirements to secure and maintain security badging?  Are any special security clearances required.

There are no special security clearance requirements.  Badging requirements vary at different NASA locations and will be further specified after contract award.  Access requirements to NASA locations may vary with subsequent tasks.

19.  Has a NASA-wide definition of ‘safety culture’ been created?  If so,
could you please provide?

No, NASA has not developed an agency-wide definition of “safety culture”. 

20.  Is an incumbent consulting firm in-place and will they be bidding on this proposal?

NASA uses numerous consulting firms in a variety of capacities throughout the Agency.  This RFP welcomes proposals from both current NASA contractors as well as organizations not currently doing business with the Agency.  

21.  If a large number of proposals are submitted, how will the first selection “cut” work? What selection criteria and what parts of proposals will be used in this initial first round selection process?  How thorough a review will be given each of the total number of proposals?  What will be the most important criteria? If NASA determines that it will limit the number of proposals to ensure effective competition by choosing a set of most highly rated proposals, how will follow-on process work.  Will this be clarified later if necessary?

A discussion of the evaluation process and criteria is included in the solicitation.

22.  Was this RFP written by and/or with the assistance of NASA Contractor staff, or did NASA Contractor staff contribute to and/or have input into this RFP?  If so, in what ways and in what parts did they contribute?

No

23.  Is there any flexibility to the requirement to have a written plan submitted within 30 days of the award.  This requirement will/might limit the ability to do a thorough assessment – especially when large numbers of contractors are included.  A more thorough initial assessment could be accomplished in 60 days.

The 30 day requirement has not been changed.

24.  We understand that the “proposed implementation plan is the deliverable.”  Does NASA require a six-month plan, a year plan, and a three-year plan? 

NASA may issue additional implementation tasks after contract award. 

25.  According to the CAIB report, NASA is composed of five strategic enterprises:  Aerospace Technology, Biological and Physical Research, Earth Science, Space Science, and Human Exploration and Development of Space.  Both the Space Shuttle and the Space Station are part of the Human Exploration and Development of Space (HEDS).  Are we to focus on the Space Shuttle part of HEDS?  On both the Space Shuttle program and the Space Station program?  Or, on all five strategic enterprises?

NASA’s requirements are stated in the solicitation.  Beyond the stated requirements, NASA is open and flexible to any offeror’s proposed implementation strategy.

26.  Is NASA intending that proposals reflect a single approach to a single culture or is the approach expected to reflect on multiple/successful organization sub-cultures that ensure safety is a priority and risks are more clearly identified and better managed to greatly reduce the likelihood of failure?

NASA’s requirements are stated in the solicitation.  Beyond the stated requirements, NASA is open and flexible to any offeror’s proposed implementation strategy.

27.  In preparing our response to the RFP, it would be helpful to know the distribution of the 19,000 NASA employees and 45,000 contractor employees - I don't need an exact count just

an approximation in each of the major areas, such as Houston, Washington, JPL, etc. Can you provide this information to me?

See Question 4, Amendment 1 (Q & A document dated December 29, 2003)

28.  Place of performance--Services:  On page 6 of the solicitation you
indicate that services shall be performed at several locations including

"contractor's facilities."  Is this intended to mean one contractor in

particular, or, if not, will you be more specific as to quantity and

potential locations?

“Contractor’s Facilities” refers to the successful offeror(s) for this solicitation working at their own facilities or the facilities of their team members and subcontractors.

29.  Does RFP5-43356-H01 have a required sbe utilization commitment goal?  Does NASA  have a SBE vendor compliance office?  If so, could you supply

the contact name and phone?

There are no SB related goals that are specified in this procurement?  The primary small business point of contact is Ms. Rosa Acevedo.  She can be reached at (301)286-8400.

30.  Can you confirm that our proposal should include working with your office to develop list of needs and items to be included in this program and that we are being looked to help you strategically as well as creatively develop this program, see it through production, etc.  

Correct

